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Manor Church of the Bretheran
Tilghmanton Vicinity
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According to J. Maurice Henry's His-~
tory of the Church of the Brethren in Mary-
land, the Manor Congregation met as early as
the 1790's, led by Elder David Long at a large
house at what was later called Oak Ridge.
Williams' History of Washington County states
that the Manor Congregation was formerly part
of that which was thc Antietam Congregation,
first knowvn as the Conococheague Church. It
is said to have been one of the first organi-
zations of Dunker Brethren, a German sect, to
locate west of the Susquehanna River. The
Church was established about 1750 near Waynes-
boro, Pennsylvania.

) The Church edifice which utilizes the
native limestone as a building material is one

of an important groun of structures along the
Manor Road. Displaying characteristics used in
vernacular stone structures during the second
quarter of the 19th century, the Manor Church
reflects the environment and the aesthetic values
of its builders.
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EINAME

HISTORIC
Manor Church of the Bretheran

AND/OR COMMON
Manor Church

BEJLOCATION

STREET & NUMBER
Manor Church Road

CITY, TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
— vicnitivyor - Tilghmanton
. STATE COUNTY
Marvland Washingcton
EJCLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
—DISTRICT —PUBLIC X 0CCUPIED — AGRICULTURE —MUSEUM
X BUILDING(S) X PRIVATE —UNOCCUPIED __COMMERCIAL __PARK
__STRUCTURE —BOTH _WORK IN PROGRESS __EDUCATIONAL __PRIVATE RESIDENCE
__SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE __ENTERTAINMENT X RELIGIOUS
—OBJECT —IN PROCESS X YES: RESTRICTED __GOVERNMENT __SCIENTIFIC
- —_BEING CONSIDERED — YES: UNRESTRICTED —INDUSTRIAL __TRANSPORTATION
—NO — MILITARY —_OTHER:
Y OWNER OF PROPERTY
NAME
Church of the Brethren Manor Congregation of Telephone #:
STREET & NUMBER Washington County.
Manor Church Road, Route # 1
CITY. TOWN sTaTE, zip code
Boonsboro — VICINITY OF Maryland 21713
IJLOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION Liber #: Uy
COURTHOUSE, Folio #:147
REGISTRY OF DEEDS.ETC.  Washington County Court House
STREET & NUMBER
West Washington Street
CITY, TOWN STATE
Hagerstown Maryland 21740
EAREPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
TITLE
DATE

—FEDERAL __STATE

—COUNTY __LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVEY RECORDS

CITY, TOWN

STATE




DESCRIPTION WRA-TL-170

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
X EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED —UNALTERED X_ORIGINAL SITE
__GOOD __RUINS XALTERED < 509% _MOVED  DATE
—FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Manor Church is located on the west side of Manor Church Road near
Emmertsville southeast of Tilghmanton in Washington County, Maryland. It
is situated on sloping ground near a spring run and has principal facades
facing east and north.

The Church is a one and a half story structure, eight bays in length and
three bays wide, built of roughly coursed local limestones. A modern brick
two story, six bay addition extends to the east. This addition obscures .
the three southern bays of the front elevation. Large stone lintels are
oresent above most window and door openings. An entrance in the center bay
of the north gable end is topped with a flat arch of cut stones. There is:

no decorative masonry associated with the exterior of the building.

Windows have narrow wooden frames finished with a bead at the inside edge.
Main story windows have nine over six pane double hung sashes while lower
story windows located at the rear of the building have six over six light
sashes. . Small windows with board shutters are set in the gables. Most
main story windows are flanked with louvered shutters.

An old photograph of the Church published in the 1906 History of Washington
County by T.J.C. Williams' indicates that entrances were located in the *™irc
and fifth bays from the south end of the east elevation. The more elabo. .te
of these two entrances is that which is now used, set in the northerly posi-
tion. It has double paneled doors topped with a five light transom. Another
principal entrance is centered in the north gable end. Although it is simi-
lar in aprearance to the other door, it does display more elaborate masonry
above its transom.

The roof of the building is covered with sheet metal. It extends slightly
beyond the north end wall but termaintes flush with the south gable wall.
Small brick chimnevs are located inside each gable end.

The Manor Church apvears to be in excellent condition. It stands on a lot
containing slightly more than one acre, part of "The Resurvey on Three :
Springs" which was purchased by the Church deacons from Michael and Ann

Emmert for $50 in 1839. The Manor Cemetery is located across Manor Church.
Road from the Church. '

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY



"Bl SIGNIFICANCE WA-TL- 1'/0

~—PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
‘REHISTORIC —ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC —COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE }{_RELIGION
—1400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC —CONSERVATION —LAwW —SCIENCE
—1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE —ECONOMICS —LITERATURE —_SCULPTURE
—1800-1699 X_ARCHITECTURE —EDUCATION —MILITARY £ SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 —ART __ENGINEERING —MusIC —THEATER
}_C.'ISOO-'IBSS _COMMERCE —EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT —PHILOSOPHY —TRANSPORTATION
—1900- —COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT —OTHER (SPECIFY)
—INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES 1830 BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
According to J. Maurice Henry's History of the Church of the Brethren in
Maryland, the Manor Congregation met as early as the 1790's, led by Elder
avid Long at a large house at what was later called Oak Ridge. Williams'
History of Washington County states that the Manor Congregation was formerly
vart of that wvhich was the Antietam Congregation, first knowvn as the Cono-
cocheague Church. Tt is said to have been one of the first organizations
of Dunker Brethren, a German sect,to locate west of the Suscuehanna River.
The Church was established about 1750 near Waynesboro, Pennsylvania.

The Williams' account further states that the Manor Dunker Congregation was
the first formed from the Antietam Church and that their Church building

was constructed in 1230. According to the Washington County Land Records,

" une UU, page 147, Michael and Ann Zmmert sold one acre and 14 perches of
land, part of the "Resurvey on Three Sporings" to John S. Rowland, David Wolf,

Emanual Lone and Joseph Wolf, Church Deacons for $50. The deed notes that

the land was the same on which the aforesaid Brethren have heretofore erected
a house for public Divine Worship.

The Church edifice which utilizes the native limestone as a building material
is one of an important group of structures along the Manor Church Road. Dis-
playing characteristics used in vernacular stone structures during the sec-
ond quarter of the 19th century, the Manor Church reflects the environment
and the aesthetic values of its builders.

:The adjoining cemetery includes members of the Emmert, Reichard, Long,
Groff and other families.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET I1F NECESSARY
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ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

[1ST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE COUNTY _
[§1FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE
Paula Stoner Dickey, Consultant
ORGANIZATION DATE
Washington County Historical Sites Survey August 1976
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
County Office Building, 33 West Washington Street  791-3065
CITY OR TOWN STAYE
Hagerstown Maryland 21740

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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